
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 

FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 
(PUR 12-092) 

 
 

POSTED 11-29-12 
THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS WERE RECEIVED BY THE CITY, WITH 
CORRESPONDING ANSWERS/CLARIFICATIONS PROVIDED: 
 
1. Question:  What is the length of the agreement for both Phase I and II?  
 

Answer: The length of the agreement for Phase I is estimated to be six 
months, the primary factor being the timeline necessary to complete the risk 
assessment and internal control audit. Some flexibility will be available in 
defining the contract term based on the timelines proposed and negotiated 
through the Request for Proposals (RFP) process. In the event that the City 
Council authorizes Phase II of the contract, the initial term of the contract will 
be for 3 years with two additional one year terms that can be executed upon 
mutual agreement of the City and the Contractor.  

 
 
2. Question: What is the City’s budget for this agreement?  
 

Answer: The City has not designated a specific budget amount for this 
agreement. The City has prepared anticipated estimates for the risk 
assessment and internal control audit project based on experience and 
market comparisons.  Given limited experience with contracting to carry out 
the duties of City Auditor, the City of Stockton developed an open ended 
Request for Proposals (RFP) process to give firms flexibility in proposing a 
fee structure while providing some detail in Attachment 3 – Proponent’s Fee 
Schedule in order to frame the workload and demand for services.  

 
 
3. Question: Please confirm that you would like the entire cost proposal under 

separate cover, including all Phase I and Phase II costs and fees structures.  
 

Answer: Yes, please submit the entire cost proposal including Phase I and 
Phase II costs and fee structures under separate cover in a sealed envelope.  

 
 
4. Question: Please confirm that Item #2 (a-d) on Page 36 of the RFP 

corresponds with Phase II – Project Costs on page 41 of the RFP.  
 

Answer: Correct. The Scope of Work for Item #2 on page 36 of the RFP  
 



5 Question: Please confirm that no costs are required to be proposed for Phase 
II – Project Costs.  

 
Answer: No costs are required to be proposed for Phase II as part of this 
RFP.  The Scope of Work for Phase I includes developing a preliminary audit 
plan based on a citywide risk assessment.  While this preliminary audit plan 
should include proposed costs for each project listed, this is not intended to 
be included in the response to the Request for Proposals.  

 
6. Question: How many staff will be assisting the City on internal audit projects?  

Does the City envision any type of a “co-sourcing” arrangement where the 
Contracted internal auditor and his/her staff work in coordination or supervise 
any City audit staff?  

 
Answer: There will not be any City staff assigned to work directly with the 
Contractor on internal audit projects. City staff in the City Manager’s Office 
and the Finance Department will coordinate with the Contractor related to 
contract administration. In addition, the Contractor will interact with the 
necessary staff to conduct audits, but City employees will not be assigned as 
staff members to the City Auditor to assist or support specific audit projects 
including the risk assessment and internal control audit.  

 
7. Question: With the City Auditor position being vacant, are any City Auditor 

staff still available to discuss prior audit operations, risk assessments, and 
audit plan development with the Contracted Internal Auditor?  

 
Answer: While no City staff will be assigned as direct support to the 
Contractor, staff that formerly worked in the City Auditor’s Office has been 
assigned to other City departments. These staff members will be available to 
discuss prior audit operations, risk assessments and audit plan development 
with the Contractor.  

 
8. Question: Attachment 3 – Proponent’s Fee Schedule provides minimal 

contracted internal auditor duties related to the ethics hot line calls and public 
inquiries along with quarterly presentations to the Council. It further suggests 
the bidder provide a minimum or average number of hours that the contracted 
internal auditor “would be available”; does the City have an expectation of the 
level of presence/weekly hours to be physically present in City offices for the 
contracted internal auditor for Phase I or is the expectation “as required” to 
complete the work stipulated in Phase I?  

 
Answer: The City does not have an expectation of the level of 
presence/weekly hours to be physically present in City offices.  The key 
consideration is the number of hours per week or month that the proponents 
deem necessary to complete the work outlined in Phase I and Phase II of the 
contract in the role of the City Auditor. The City does have an expectation that 



the contracted City Auditor would be readily accessible by phone and email 
during regular business hours.  

 
9 Question: What is the significance of the page number ranges provided on 

pages 16 and 17 of the RFP? Are they suggestions or do they represent 
minimum and maximum page allocations for each section of our proposal?  

 
Answer: The purpose of the page number ranges provided on pages 16 and 
17 is to limit the size and content of the response in order to focus the review 
on the most relevant factors and to not overburden the review process.  
These page ranges do not reflect a minimum or maximum, but excessive 
documentation under any of the sections will be viewed as less responsive.  

10 Question: With the City’s bankruptcy proceeding, how will that affect the 
work related to the internal audit procedures?  

Answer: The bankruptcy process is distinct from the internal control audit.  
Although the City’s budget is governed by the Pendency Plan adopted for 
the bankruptcy process, the majority of the City’s internal controls and 
processes remain static. The internal control audit may need to be flexible 
under the circumstances, but disruption should be minimal and City staff 
will work closely with the Contractor to assure that analysis is conducted 
using the correct data and information.  

11 Question: Phase I of the engagement requires a citywide review of internal 
controls. Are prior auditor working papers available for review by the 
Contracted internal auditor?  

Answer: Working papers and reports for prior audits will be made available to 
the Contractor. There are recent audits that are relevant to issues of internal 
controls, however these audits have had narrow scopes focused on specific 
functions and there has not been a comprehensive audit of internal controls 
for the City for some time.  

12 Question: Phase I item 2d mentions that the contracted internal auditor is to 
“make use of and build upon the internal control evaluation work done by 
the City’s independent CPA firm…” and Attachment 3 – Proponent’s Fee 
Schedule further stipulates that the cost estimate provide a range based on 
“minimal” and “significant” concerns. The most recent financial 
statements/CAFR available is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.  
Have the 6/30/11 statements/reports been issued? Can potential bidders 
get access to the more recent financial statements with the auditor’s reports 
and all Management Letters for the past 3 available financial audits?  

Answer: The 6/30/11 statements/reports have not been issued.  The City is 
in the process of finalizing these statements in the near term.  However, they 
will not be available prior to the submittal date for the RFP responses.  The 



CAFR and management letter for 6/30/11 will be made available as soon as 
possible in the contracting process and are anticipated to be available in 
time to assist with the work of the Contractor in completing the internal 
control audit.  The financial statements available on the City’s website are 
the only statements that are currently available. For this reason the City 
requested a cost proposal that included a cost range to be flexible based on 
the outcome of these statements and reports.  

13 Question: When does the City expect the 6/30/12 CAFR/financial 
statements to be complete and presented to the Council? 

  
Answer: The City is also currently finalizing the 6/30/12 CAFR and 
management letter to be presented to the City Council in the near term.  It is 
anticipated that these documents will also be available to assist the 
Contractor in conducting the internal control audit.  

14 Question: It appears that the City recently contracted with a new firm to 
provide the annual external financial audit. Does the City have a rotational 
policy, did the contract expire, or did the City choose not to use the former 
auditor for 20102011?  

Answer: The practice of the City has not been to have a rotational policy, but 
to competitively bid the contract on a regular basis, typically a five year 
period. The City of Stockton had a contract for external financial audits with 
a firm that expired in 2011. A request for proposals was issued for a new 
contract for external financial audit services. The successful firm received a 
contract with a term of 5 years.  

 
 
POSTED 11-13-12 
 
1.  Communication – please send your communication via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is November 15, 2012. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by November 29, 2012. 
 
4.  Proposals due promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, December 6, 2012, City 

Clerk’s Office. 
 
 


